
NOTICE

                    OF

               MEETING

  EMPLOYMENT AND 
MEMBER STANDARDS PANEL

                                                                   will meet on

                                                    TUESDAY, 10TH MARCH, 2020

                                                                    At 6.30 pm

                                                                 in the

ASCOT AND BRAY - TOWN HALL, MAIDENHEAD 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE EMPLOYMENT AND MEMBER STANDARDS PANEL

COUNCILLORS CHRISTINE BATESON, SAMANTHA RAYNER (CHAIRMAN), 
LYNNE JONES, DEL CAMPO, SHAMSUL SHELIM (VICE-CHAIRMAN), 
SIMON WERNER, DAVID COPPINGER AND ANDREW JOHNSON 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS DAVID HILTON, JOHN STORY, JOHN BALDWIN, DAVID CANNON, 
STUART CARROLL, PHIL HASELER, GEOFF HILL AND JOSHUA REYNOLDS

Karen Shepherd, Service Lead- Governance - Issued: Monday, 2 March 2020

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator David Cook 01628 796560

Accessibility - Members of the public wishing to attend this meeting are requested to notify the clerk in advance of 
any accessibility issuesFire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the 
building quickly and calmly by the nearest exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Do 
not re-enter the building until told to do so by a member of staff.
Recording of Meetings –In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the public part of the meeting will be 
audio recorded, and may also be filmed and broadcast through the online application Periscope. If filmed, the footage 
will be available through the council’s main Twitter feed @RBWM or via the Periscope website. The audio recording 
will also be made available on the RBWM website, after the meeting. 
Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings may be undertaken by any person attending the 
meeting. By entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this 
recording will be in the public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the 
Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

This agenda may contain 
sensitive personal data 
and the contents should 
not be shared with 
anyone. If you have any 
questions, please contact 
the clerk or Monitoring 
Officer.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence
 

-

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest
 

5 - 6

3.  MINUTES

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2020.
 

7 - 10

4.  CHANGES TO CODE OF CONDUCT AND COMPLAINTS PROCESS

To consider the report.
 

11 - 56

5.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:-

“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place 
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act"
 

-



PART II - PRIVATE MEMBER

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

6.  MINUTES 

To consider the Part II minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2020.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

57 - 58

7.  RESPONSE TO UNISON AND GMB PAY CLAIM FOR 2020/21 

To consider the report.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

59 - 64

8.  APPOINTMENT OF HEAD OF FINANCE. 

To consider the report.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

To 
Follow





 
MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS  

 
Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial 
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to 
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.   
 
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not 
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make 
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting.  In order to avoid any accusations of taking 
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area 
or, if they wish, leave the room.  If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of 
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in 
carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been 
fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the 
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 
 
A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx. 
As soon as we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the 
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
 
Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so 
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s 
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.   
 
A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations in the item: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as 
we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the public area for 
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Personal interests 
 
Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a 
Member when making a decision on council matters.  
 

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x 
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, I will take part in the discussion and vote on the 
matter. 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



EMPLOYMENT AND MEMBER STANDARDS PANEL

TUESDAY, 14 JANUARY 2020

PRESENT: Councillors Christine Bateson, Samantha Rayner (Chairman), 
Lynne Jones, Catherine Del Campo, Shamsul Shelim (Vice-Chairman), Simon Werner 
and Andrew Johnson

Officers: Nikki Craig, Duncan Sharkey and David Cook.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received by Cllr Coppinger.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest received.

MINUTES 

Resolved unanimously: that the minutes of the meetings on 12 November and 3 
December 2020 be approved as a true record subject to Cllr Baldwin’s comments on 
page 9 of the 12 November minutes be changed to Cllr Werner. 

GENDER PAY GAP 2019 

The Head of HR, Corporate Projects and IT introduced the report regarding the Council’s 
Gender Pay Gap.

Members were informed that the Council was required to publish by 30 March annually a 
number of gender pay gap indicators reflecting a snapshot of employees in post on 31 March 
the previous year. The report contained the data for 31 March 2019 to be published by 30 
March 2020.

Table 2 of the report compared the Council’s 2019 gender pay gap with national figures for all 
employees and those in the public sector for 2018.  The Council’s gap remained significantly 
below the 2018 national figures with a 5% mean gap and 2.6% median gap.

Table 3 compared the Council with the other Berkshire councils for 2018 as the 2019 data was 
not yet available.  Page 15 also showed performance payments by gender pay gap.  A larger 
percentage of payments were made to men during 2018/19, which was down to the Royal 
Wedding preparations where a larger proportion of males undertook additional work.  

Appendix D showed pay profiles within pay grades.  The figures showed that for eight out of 
13 grades, women were paid slightly more than men. For grades 10 and above, although men 
are mostly paid slightly more than women, analysis of the gender profile identified that women 
had fewer years’ service with the Council and less continuous Local Government service.

The Council were trying to encourage more women to take up managerial roles by having 
flexible working, introducing paid leave for foster careers and a middle management forum. 

Cllr Del Campo asked why there were more men who worked on the Royal Wedding, why 
some of the payments were large and if there had been any complaints about gender bias. In 
response the Panel were informed that there had been more men working on the Royal 
Wedding due to the roles required, such as parking, parks and highway officers, being mainly 

7

Agenda Item 3



male.  The level of reward were set to no more than 1k and came from existing service 
budgets and that there had been no complaints about gender bias.  The panel were also 
informed that a new unconscious bias e-learning training launched for all managers to 
undertake. 

Cllr Del Campo also asked for clarification regarding those on part time roles and was 
informed that the pay was based on the role and not the hours worked, however pat time roles 
tended to be on the lower grades and part time workers were less likely to move into 
management positions although this is something the council are trying to actively promote.  

Cllr Jones asked how many employees were covered by the results and why at grades 10/11 
there were more women employed but they were on lower pay was this historical. The Panel  
were informed that it was about 600 centrally employed staff.  The reason for some men at 
grades 10/11 being on higher pay was they tended to have longer continues service and yes 
this related to historical grading where the longer you were in service the higher up the ladder 
you would be.  RBWM also had larger career grading that resulted to those in service longer 
being on higher pay.

Cllr Werner asked what organisations had to report data and if this could be a requirement in 
any tendered contracts.  The Panel were informed that an employer with over 250 employees 
had to provide data and that any employees Tuped would remain on the same terms and 
conditions. 

Cllr Jones asked if AFC and Optalis provided data and was informed that this could be 
requested at Ownership and Management Board meetings.

Resolved unanimously: that Employment and Member Standards Panel notes the 
report and:

i) Approves the updated commentary about the Council’s gender pay gap for 
publication on the Council’s website and the Gov.uk website.

ii) Approves the continuing actions identified in the commentary.

APPROVAL OF 2020/21 PAY POLICY STATEMENT 

The Head of HR, Corporate Projects and IT introduced the report regarding the Council’s Pay 
Policy Statement for 2020/21 that if approved would go to Council on 25 February 2020.

The Panel were informed that the policy had been updated to reflect the latest structure for 
‘Chief Officers’ , updated pay ratio between the Managing Director and the median and 
average pay as well as updated employee numbers.

It was noted that the policy would require further amendments if and when the government 
introduced exit payments being gapped at £90k, 

Resolved unanimously: that the Employment and Member Standards Panel notes the 
report and:

i) Approves the updated Pay Policy Statement for 2020/21 and recommends 
the statement to full Council for approval on 25 February 2020.

ii) Notes that further revisions will be required to the statement when the 
Government’s reforms to public sector exit pay arrangements are 
implemented.

REVIEW OF ARRANGEMENTS FOR STANDBY AND OVERTIME 
8



The Managing Director introduced the report regarding a review of arrangements for overtime 
and standby pay.

The Panel were informed that CLT had already approved the change in the amount paid to the 
EDO role but as this was approved by the Managing Director and thus he would potentially 
benefit it was decided to bring the proposals to this Panel.

It had been agreed to create a new EDO payment at £150 per week when on call and that 
overtime payments could be made to those on grade 8 or above for civic events or emergency 
situation. It was noted that a number of employees did not claim any of the payments, even 
though they were entitled to, as they saw it as part of their role. 

Cllr Del Campo mentioned that there were no financial implications in the report and was 
informed that these would be negligible and for certain events, such as the Royal Wedding, 
the council would be paid by Government.  The EDO payments were already paid from 
existing budgets. 

The report was noted. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst 
discussion takes place on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.

The meeting, which began at 6.00 pm, finished at 7.15 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Report Title: Changes to Code of Conduct and
Complaints process

Contains Confidential or
Exempt Information?

No - Part I

Member Reporting Councillor Rayner, Lead Member for
Resident and Leisure Services, HR, IT, Legal,
Performance Management and Windsor

Meeting and Date: Employment and Member Standards
Panel 10th March 2020

Responsible Officer(s): Duncan Sharkey, Managing Director
Mary Severin, Monitoring Officer

Wards affected: None

1. DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATION(S)

RECOMMENDATION: That the Employment and Member Standards Panel:

i) Approves the draft changes to the Code of Conduct and complaints
process as set out in Appendix A and

ii) Authorises the Monitoring Officer to recommend the approved
changes to full Council to amend the Constitution.

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS AND OPTIONS CONSIDERED

At the meeting of the Employment and Member Standards Panel on 10th

September 2019, Members considered a report from the Monitoring officer
outlining recommendations made by the Committee on Standards in Public life
with regard to standards of conduct by Members. The Panel also considered
a report from the Monitoring Officer on the current list of Code of Conduct
complaints.

The driving forces for the proposed changes was to find a balance between
ensuring and demonstrating high standards of conduct by Members, and at

REPORT SUMMARY

1. On 10th September 2019 the Panel delegated to the Monitoring Officer, in
consultation with the Chairman of the Employment and Member Standards
Panel, to make amendments to the Code of Conduct and associated Complaints
process. The Monitoring Officer met with the Chairman of the Employment and
Member Standards Panel on 19th February 2020 to discuss the draft
amendments.

2. This report explains the proposed changes, the reasons for them, and
recommends that those changes are brought to full Council for a decision to
formalise those changes into the Constitution.

3. The draft changes are outlined in Appendix A to this report. The current Code of
Conduct and complaints process are shown in Appendix B of this report

11

Agenda Item 4



the same time to set a line between complaints which were dealt with, which
ensured that high priority, and at the same time find a process to reject
complaints where there was no public interest in spending valuable Council
resources in dealing with certain types of complaint.

There was also a need to clarify the rules of the Code of Conduct. The
proposed changes do this in two ways; firstly using plain English for the rules
themselves, and secondly providing guidance and definition of terms used.
With regard to the complaints process, the proposal is that the Monitoring
Officer could continue to be authorised to deal with rejecting complaints in the
same circumstances as exist in the current process, as well as make decisions
where there is clear evidence of no breach. For a clear breach of the Code of
Conduct, or where there is ambiguity, then the decision should be made by a
Member Standards Sub Committee. More details of the changes can be
summarised as follows.

 Removal of the wording ‘You as a Member … shall have regard to the
following principles: selflessness…. ‘etc. In fact s28 of the Localism Act 2011
requires that a local authority shall have a code which is consistent with those
principles, not that a Member must individually have regard to them. This
caused complaints based on, for example, ‘objectivity’, which was effectively
meaningless.

 There is no express rule about discrimination. This has been added, in view of
our requirements under the Equality Act 2010.

 Subject Members have been known not to co-operate with a complaint. There
is currently no rule which provides that Members have to co-operate with a
Code of Conduct complaint against them. This has therefore been added to
the requirement to co-operate generally to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to
their office.

 As various Monitoring Officers had made amendments to the wording of Part
7, it has become disjointed. This has therefore been rearranged so that the
appendices are in order of the requirements of the code, for example, para. iii)
of the code, which deals with declaring interests, is covered by appendices 1
and 2, and para v) of the code is covered by appendix 3.

 Most complaints from Members are against Members of a different group
which are based on a lack of respect. It is felt that the rules about disrespect
should be set at a different standard where complaints are Members against
other Members. It has therefore been added, at the guidance section, that a
breach of the Code for disrespect from a Member complainant against another
Member would be exceptional. With this added wording it is hoped that there
will be a reduction in the number of Code of Conduct complaints.

The order of the appendices now runs as follows:
1. The rules of the Code of Conduct, now on one page
2. Appendix 1, registration and disclosure of interests. Unfortunately the

definition of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests is statutory it is not possible to
simplify the wording.

3. Appendix 2, definitions of those interests
4. Appendix 3, definitions of ‘high standards of conduct’, which now form para. v.

of the revised Code.
5. Appendix 4: definition of ‘acting as a Member or Co-Opted Member’ for the

purposes of stating as clearly as possible when the Code of Conduct applies.

12



6. Appendix 5 and 6: Arrangements for dealing with complaints and procedures
for the Member Standards Sub-Committee

The problems with the associated existing complaints process, with response to
those problems:

 The current complaints process is over-complicated. The vast majority of
complaints in the current process are dealt with by the Monitoring Officer when
it is felt that it is not always appropriate, particularly where the complaint is
serious. It is felt that where there is an indication that there is a breach of the
Code of Conduct, Members should make a decision and not the Monitoring
Officer. The proposed changes to the process are that, where there is clearly
no breach of the Code of Conduct, or alternatively where an investigation
concludes that there is no breach of the code of Conduct, the Monitoring
Officer makes a decision. For all other situations, that is, for a clear breach of
the Code of Conduct, or if an investigation report concludes there is a breach,
it will go to a Members Standards Sub-Committee for a decision. The Sub
Committee are also better suited to making a decision because they have
wider powers of sanction.

 The time scales by which responses had to be made were either not
justifiable, or they were unreasonable. For example a Subject Member is
given 15 working days to respond to a complaint. This seems to be too long,
so a maximum of 10 working days is proposed. There is flexibility from the
Monitoring Officer so that this can be extended if necessary, for example if
they wish to seek advice from an Independent Person first.

 There was provision to provide free independent legal advice to Subject
Members. It is felt that this is inappropriate for a Code of Conduct
complaint. Such legal advice could come to a significant amount and it would
not be in the public interest to spend Council money helping a Member fight a
Code of Conduct complaint. The process of allowing a Member to seek legal
advice also causes unnecessary delay. This has been removed. Subject
Members continue to have access to free help from one of the Independent
Persons.

 There is currently provision to publish all Code of Conduct decisions, for a
breach, for 24 months and for a no-breach decision, 6 months. There is a
need for transparency for Code of Conduct decisions, however it is felt that
publishing a decision for 24 months was too punitive, and that publishing a no-
breach decision may cause a degree of suspicion that would be unfair. The
time period for publishing a decision of a breach of the Code of Conduct has
been changed to 12 months, and no publication for a no-breach decision.

 Consultation of the Chairman of the Employment and Member Standards
Panel before the Monitoring Officer has made a ‘no breach’ decision for cases
which there has been a clear ‘no breach’ has been removed.

Summary of process:

Stage 1: Complaint received. Clarification sought if necessary
Subject Member responds, after seeking advice from an Independent Person if
necessary.
Initial Assessment by Monitoring Officer conducted, to reject or accept complaints
using the criteria stated at para. 3.

13



Stage 2, decision by the Monitoring Officer. Where there’s clear evidence of no
breach of the Code of Conduct, MO makes ‘no-breach’ decision. Where there is a
clear breach, MO refers matter to Member Standards Sub-Committee for a local
hearing and decision, writing a report with a recommendation for a decision.

Where there is possibly a breach, the MO will ask for a formal investigation, with the
investigator writing a report that concludes on whether there has been a breach or
not. If the finding of that investigation is that there is no breach of the Code, then the
MO will make a ‘no-breach’ decision. If the conclusion is that there has been a
breach of the Code, then the MO will refer it to a Member Standards Sub-Committee
for a decision.

Stage 3, decision by Member Standards Sub-Committee (as appropriate). The
procedure for this is described at Appendix 6 of the revised Code, and is broadly the
same as in the existing complaints process, but with clarified wording. The
Monitoring Officer will write a report with a recommendation for a decision, giving
clear reasons for the decision. There is also provision that the Monitoring Officer will
prepare a decision notice in consultation with the Chairman. The sanctions are the
same. As stated above, a Subject Member’s right to legal advice is removed.

Options

Table 1: Options arising from this report
Option Comments
The Employment and Member
Standards Panel to approve the
changes to the Code of Conduct
and associated complaints process
and recommend taking these
changes to full Council to change
the Constitution
This is the recommended option

This will ensure better clarity into the
Council’s Code of Conduct and
complaints process, improvement in
public confidence in the Council’s
standards arrangements and reduce
the number of complaints

The Employment and Member
Standards Panel to not approve the
changes to the Code of Conduct
and associated complaints process,
or recommending taking these
changes to full Council to change
the Constitution

This will fail to ensure better clarity
into the Council’s Code of Conduct
and complaints process thereby
undermining public confidence in the
council’s standards arrangements
and having a high level of
complaints recorded

3. KEY IMPLICATIONS

Table 2: Key Implications
Outcome Unmet Met Exceeded Significantly

Exceeded
Date of
delivery

Public
confidence in
the Council’s

Little public
confidence in
the Council’s

Transparency
and clear
expectations

The number
of complaints
reduce by

The number
of complaints
reduce by

April 2020
(changes to
constitution);

14



Outcome Unmet Met Exceeded Significantly
Exceeded

Date of
delivery

Standards
arrangements
and reduction
in complaints

Standards
arrangements
and the same
level of
complaints

from the
public and
Members
with regard to
the Council’s
Standards
arrangements
and a lower
amount of
complaints

10% due to
clarity and
better
understanding
of the
Council’s
Standards
arrangements

20% due to
clarity and
better
understanding
of the
Council’s
Standards
arrangements

September
2020
(reduction in
complaints)

4. FINANCIAL DETAILS / VALUE FOR MONEY

None

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Localism Act 2011 provides that all local authorities must have arrangements
in place for a Code of Conduct, and a process for dealing with complaints
under that Code of Conduct.

6. RISK MANAGEMENT

Table 3: Impact of risk and mitigation
Risks Uncontrolled

risk
Controls Controlled

risk
That the current
level of
complaints
increases due
to lack of
understanding
of what is
required by
Members

Medium Changes to the Code of
Conduct and guidance on
behaviours

Low

Poor public
confidence in
the standards
system

Medium Better transparency in
decision making

Low

7. POTENTIAL IMPACTS

No impact on equalities and no personal data has been used in this report
No potential impact in relation to climate change or sustainability.

8. CONSULTATION

The Chairman of the Panel has been consulted.

15



9. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

10. If the recommendations are approved, a report detailing proposed changes to
the Code of Conduct would be presented to full Council for their meeting on
28th April 2020.

11. APPENDICES

Appendix A: Proposed changes to the Code of Conduct and complaints
process
Appendix B: Current Code of Conduct and complaints process

12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

 None

Name of
consultee

Post held Date
sent

Date
returned

Cllr Rayner Lead Member for Resident and
Leisure Services, HR, IT, Legal,
Performance Management and
Windsor

Duncan Sharkey Managing Director
Russell O’Keefe Executive Director
Elaine Browne Head of Law and Deputy

Monitoring Officer
Nikki Craig Head of HR and Corporate

Projects
Louisa Dean Communications
Kevin McDaniel Director of Children’s Services
Hilary Hall Deputy Director of

Commissioning and Strategy,
Interim DASS

Karen Shepherd Head of Governance and
Deputy Monitoring Officer

3/3/20 3/3/20

REPORT HISTORY

Decision type:
Employment and
Member Standards
Panel decision to
recommend to full
Council

Urgency item?
Yes – to allow for changes
to be considered by full
council in April 2020

To Follow item?
Yes – urgent item

Report Author: Mary Severin, Monitoring Officer mary.severin@rbwm.gov.uk

16



1

Appendix A: Proposed changes to the Code of Conduct and complaints

process

Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead Members’ Code of Conduct

Under this Code of Conduct, when acting in your capacity as a Member or co-opted
Member1 you must have regard to the following rules2:

i) You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly confer an
advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other
material benefits of financial value for yourself, or others.

ii) You must co-operate fully with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office,
including reasonably co-operating with enquiries connected to any Code of
Conduct complaint made against you under this Code of Conduct.

iii) You must, in your decision making role, declare personal, prejudicial and
disclosable pecuniary interests, as well as any predetermination, and take
steps to resolve any conflicts as a result of those interests, including registering
and declaring interests in accordance with the procedures set out in the
Appendices 1 to 2 below.

iv) You must, when using the Council’s resources, ensure that such resources are
not used for improper purposes. This rule includes not doing anything which
could potentially cause the Council to be in breach of the Code of
Recommended Practice on Local Government Publicity.

v) You must promote and support high standards of conduct by leadership and
example in your dealings with members of the public, Members and Officers by
ensuring that:3

 You must not act in a way which a reasonable person would regard as
bullying or intimidating

 You must not unlawfully discriminate against anyone, regardless of
gender, race, disability, sexual orientation, age or religion.

 You must not behave in such a way that a reasonable person would
regard as disrespectful

 You must not disclose information which you believe, or ought
reasonable be aware is confidential, unless you have the consent of
the person authorised to give it, or where you are required by law to do
so.

1 ‘Acting as a Member or Co-Opted Member’ - see Appendix 4
2 The Code of Conduct is consistent with the following principles: selflessness, integrity, objectivity,
accountability, openness, honesty and leadership, as required by s28 Localism Act 2011
3 See Appendix 3 ‘High Standards of Conduct’ for guidance on this part of the Code

17



2

Appendix 1

Registering Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (s.30 Localism Act 2011)
and Personal Interests

You must, within 28 days of taking office as a Member or co-opted Member, notify
your authority’s Monitoring Officer of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (‘DPIs’),
where the DPI is yours, your spouse’s or civil partner’s, or is the DPI of somebody with
whom you are living with as a husband or wife, as if you were civil partners. The
definition of each DPI is in Appendix 2.

In addition, you must, within 28 days of taking office as a Member or co-opted Member,
notify your authority’s Monitoring Officer of any Personal Interest as defined in
Appendix 2.

If any DPI or Personal Interest has not been entered onto the authority’s Register of
Interests, then the Member must disclose the interest to any meeting of the authority
at which they are present, where they have an interest in any matter being considered
and where the matter is not a Sensitive Interest as defined in Appendix 2.

Following disclosure of any interest not on the authority’s Register of Interests or the
subject of a pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest
within 28 days beginning with the date of disclosure in order that it may be placed on
the Register of Interests.

You must also, within 28 days of receipt, notify the Monitoring Officer, in writing, of any
gift, benefit or hospitality, with a value in excess of £25, which will then be entered on
the public register of gifts and hospitality.

A copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will be published on
the authority’s website.

Disclosure of interests and participation in meetings.
(s.31 Localism Act 2011)

Disclosure at Meetings

You are required to disclose interests at meetings when you are aware that a DPI, a
Prejudicial Interest4 or a Personal Interest which is relevant to the matter being
considered.

You are not required to (but can do so if you wish) disclose any other type of interest
that you may have. If in doubt, it is always better to disclose an interest than not do
so as the Council places a high value upon its public reputation for openness and
integrity.

4 See definition of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, Prejudicial Interest and Personal Interests at
Appendix 2

18



3

Participation for Decision Makers at Meetings

If you attend a meeting as a decision maker and have:

(a) DPI which is relevant to the matter under discussion; or
(b) a Prejudicial Interest;

then you must not participate in any debate of the matter and/or participate in any
vote at the meeting, unless you have obtained a Dispensation. Details of how to
obtain a Dispensation are below.

If you have a DPI or Prejudicial Interest (and do not have a Dispensation) as
described then you must declare the interest at the start of the meeting when the
Chairman asks if there are any interests to declare. Before the item is to be
discussed, you may make representations before there is debate on the matter but,
when finished, you must move to the pubic area or leave the room and take no
further part in the discussion or vote.

If you remain in the room, you must not sit with the other Members of the meeting
and must move to the public area. You must not speak after making your
representations. It is also important that you do not express your views in a non-
verbal way, for example by using body language or expressing emotion.

You cannot avoid disclosure of a DPI or Prejudicial Interest merely by withdrawing
during that part of the meeting when the matter you have a DPI or Prejudicial
Interest, is to be discussed. In respect to a DPI, failure to comply is a Criminal
Offence.

How to obtain a Dispensation

If you seek a Dispensation under s33 Localism Act 2011, you must make a written
request to the Proper Officer of the Council.

The Proper Officer or the Council by a majority vote may grant a dispensation under
this section only if, after having had regard to all relevant circumstances, the
authority—

(a) considers that without the dispensation the number of persons from
participating in any particular business would be so great a proportion of the
body transacting the business as to impede the transaction of the business,

(b) considers that without the dispensation the representation of different political
groups on the body transacting any particular business would be so upset as to
alter the likely outcome of any vote relating to the business,

(c) considers that granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in
the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead.

19



4

(d) in the case of decisions made by Cabinet, considers that without the
dispensation each Member of the Cabinet would be prohibited from
participating in any particular business of Cabinet, or

(e) considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation. 5

A dispensation under this section must specify the period for which it has effect, and
the period specified may not exceed four years. 6

The Proper Officer in connection to this Appendix is the Managing Director, the
Monitoring Officer or his or her Deputy, or the officer clerking the meeting.

5 S33(2) Localism Act 2011
6 S33(3) Localism Act 2011

20



5

Appendix 2

Definitions of Disclosable Pecuniary, Prejudicial and Personal Interests and
Predetermination

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPIs)

These are statutory interests defined by regulations made under s30(3) of the
Localism Act 2011 and described in the table below.

(‘M’ means you and ‘relevant person’ means you and your partner). “Partner” means
a spouse or civil partner of M, or a person with whom M is living as husband and wife
or a person with whom M is living as if they were civil partners

Subject Prescribed description
Employment, office,
trade, profession or
vacation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation
carried on for profit or gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit
(other than from the relevant authority) made or provided
within the relevant period in respect of any expenses
incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or
towards the election expenses of M.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts

Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or
a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest)
and the relevant authority—
a) under which goods or services are to be provided or

works are to be executed; and
b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land
Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the
relevant authority.

Licences
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in
the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge)—
a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a

beneficial interest.

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
a) that body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of business

or land in the area of the relevant authority; and
b) either—

i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds
£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or

21



6

ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one
class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one
class in which the relevant person has a beneficial
interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that class.

These descriptions on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests above are subject to the
following definitions;

The Act means the Localism Act 2011

Body in which the
relevant person has
a beneficial interest

means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a
body corporate of which the relevant person is a director,
or in the securities of which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest;

Director
includes a member of the committee of management of an
industrial and provident society;

Land

excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or
over land which does not carry with it a right for the
relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the
land or to receive income;

M means a member of a relevant authority;
Member includes a co-opted member;
Relevant authority means the authority of which M is a member;

Relevant period
means the period of 12 months ending with the day on
which M gives a notification for the purposes of section
30(1) or section 31(7), as the case may be, of the Act;

Relevant person
means M or any other person referred to in section
30(3)(b) of the Act;

Securities

means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock,
bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the
meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
and other securities of any description, other than money
deposited with a building society.

It is a potentially a criminal offence under s34 Localism Act 2011 if you fail, without
reasonable excuse, to comply with the requirements under s30 or s31 Localism Act
2011 to register or declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.

Personal Interests

These are interests which the Council has decided should be disclosed, under
s29(2) Localism Act 2011. A Personal Interest is:

i) Any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and
to which you are elected appointed or nominated by the Council;

ii) Any body of which you are a member, or have a close association or which
you are in a positon of general control, influence or management and that
body:

 exercises functions of a public nature; or

22



7

 is in receipt of any grant from the Council; or
 is directed to charitable purposes; or
 is one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or

policy (including any political party or trade union),

iii) Membership of any private club, society or association operating within the
Borough Council’s area, where you hold a position of general control or
management

iv) Any other connection or association which a member of the public may
reasonably think may influence you when you make a decision on Council
matters and acting as a Councillor. e.g. the decision relates to a close family
member or friend and could have a benefit to them.

You are not required to record any Personal Interest in point (iv) above on your
Register of Interests but may do so if you wish.

Prejudicial Interest

This is Personal Interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of
the public, with knowledge of all the facts, would reasonably believe is so significant
that it influences your judgement of the public interest, in other words, you have the
appearance of being biased towards a decision before actually making it. This would
include where you have predetermined a matter. It is not enough for you to make
reassurances that you are in fact not biased, but what it appears like, in the view of a
reasonable and fair-minded informed member of the public.

The mere existence of local knowledge, or connections within the local community,
will not in itself amount to a prejudicial interest. There must be some factor that might
positively appear to harm your ability to judge the public interest objectively. The
nature of the matter is also important, including whether a large number of people
are equally affected by it or whether you or a smaller group are particularly affected.

Predetermination

Predetermination means that you have a closed mind and do not make a decision
impartially and solely on the basis of the relevant facts. This will be demonstrated if
you make a public statement in absolute terms about a decision you are to make. If
you make such statements but nevertheless participate in a decision, you will put the
Council at risk of legal action challenging that decision.

You will not have predetermined a matter just because you have expressed a
particular opinion previously or hold a view prior to any meeting. If you have an open
mind, are willing to listen and are open to consider all the facts and arguments
presented to you before making your decision, then you will not have predetermined
a matter. If you have indicated a view in a public forum, you will be asked at a decision-
making meeting to declare that, although you have given such a view, you

23



8

nevertheless have an open mind. This will be done when the Chairman asks if there
are any interests to declare. 7

Sensitive Interest

A Sensitive Interest occurs where you and the Monitoring Officer consider that
disclosure of the details of a DPI or a Personal Interest could lead to you, or a person
connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation. If the interest is entered
on the register, copies of the register that are made available for inspection and any
published version of the register will exclude details of the interest, but may state that
you have a DPI or a Personal Interest and that the details are withheld under Section
32(2).

7 See s25 Localism Act 2011 Prior indications of a view are not to amount to predetermination

24



9

Guidance on High Standards of Conduct (para. v) Appendix 3

What is ‘bullying’ and ‘intimidation’?

Bullying has been described by ACAS as ‘offensive, intimidating, malicious, or
insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power through means that undermine,
humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient’. A victim’s obvious vulnerability will be
taken into account when assessing whether bullying has occurred.

Bullying conduct can involve behaving in an abusive or threatening way, or making
allegations about people in public, in the company of their colleagues, through the
press or in blogs. It may happen once or be part of a pattern of behaviour, although
minor isolated incidents are unlikely to be considered bullying. It is also unlikely that a
Member will be found guilty of bullying when both parties have contributed to a
breakdown in relations.

Bullying should be contrasted with the legitimate challenges which a Member can
make in challenging policy or scrutinising performance. Contributing to debates in
Council meetings about policy and asking officers to explain the rationale for their
professional opinions are to be encouraged. All Members should feel free to challenge
fellow councillors and professional officers as to why their views are held. However,
Members need to be careful about criticism which becomes offensive in nature which
will cross the line of what a reasonable person would find acceptable.

Discrimination

It is unlawful to discriminate against a person because they have one of the "protected
characteristics", which are, age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation.

The primary legislation is the Equality Act 2010, which outlaws discrimination in access
to education, public services, private goods and services or premises in addition to
employment. An allegation that a Member has unlawfully discriminated against
anyone will be judged by reference to the requirements of the Equality Act 2010.

Respect - what a reasonable person would regard as disrespectful to others.

Everyone in normal life is very aware of what ‘respect’ looks like; however, in a culture
of positive argument in politics and legal matters, the lines can get blurred between
interacting with others to make a point, and yet remaining respectful of other’s views.
Ideas and policies may be robustly criticised, but individuals should not be subject to
unreasonable or excessive personal attack. This particularly applies to dealing with
the public and officers. Chairmen of meetings are expected to apply the rules of debate
and procedure rules or standing orders to prevent abusive or disorderly conduct.

In politics, rival groupings are common, either in formal political parties or more
informal alliances. It is expected that each will campaign for their ideas, and they may
also seek to discredit the policies and actions of their opponents. Criticism of ideas
and opinion is part of democratic debate, and does not in itself amount to failing to
treat someone with respect. In an arena of political discussion, including postings on

25



10

social media, and debate in Council meetings, a finding of a breach for disrespect
would be exceptional. It is not for the Council to get involved in political arguments
between Members, which are better dealt with by a complaint to the relevant political
group or leader. The Monitoring Officer will reject complaints which appear to be
political ‘tit for tat’ alone. Parody postings on social media by a Member about another
Member, for example, whilst considered to be of significant poor taste, are unlikely to
amount to disrespect unless there was an indication of discrimination or other unlawful
issue.

The Council is under a legal obligation to ensure that officers work in a safe
environment and the same rules about their interaction with the public apply equally
to their work with Members. Anyone should feel free to express disagreement with
officers, so long as it is done in an appropriate way. Officers should make decisions
which are unbiased, and attempts to coerce them or persuade them to act in a
particular way to a point where to do so would prejudice their professional integrity
would not be acceptable. It is also unacceptable to criticise officers as individuals in
a public forum. When receiving such a complaint, the Monitoring Officer will take into
account the specific circumstances of the case, whether the member was entitled to
question the officer concerned, whether there was an attempt to intimidate or
undermine the officer and the content and context of what was said.

Confidential Information

All information marked ‘confidential’, or given as confidential via verbal or non-verbal
communication, must be treated as such and not disclosed in any form to another
person.

Unmarked Information is confidential where it involves personal data, or that it is
information that is deemed reasonable that it should be kept confidential, for
example where there is an obvious detriment to someone by a disclosure.

Councillors must not cause the Council to breach Data Protection legislation by
releasing any personal information which is held by the Council, but comes to the
knowledge of the Councillor. Such disclosure could cause the Council to be subject
to severe fines.

Members are advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer if they are unsure
whether information is confidential.

26



11

When ‘acting as a Member or Co-opted Member’ Appendix 4

S27 of the Localism Act 2011 obliges a local authority, in discharging it’s duty to
promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members, to adopt a Code of
Conduct dealing with the conduct that is expected of Members ‘when they are acting
in that capacity’. (s27(2). The Council does not therefore have authority to consider
a Member’s conduct undertaken in their private capacity. 8 This includes allegations
of disrespect, bullying or intimidation which have no link to Council business, no
matter how serious the allegation.

You will nevertheless be deemed to be acting as a Councillor, and therefore within
the rules in this Code of Conduct, when you are conducting the business of the
Council, or communicating or corresponding about the business of the Council, or
whenever you act, claim or give the impression you are acting in the role of
Councillor. The rules of the Code of Conduct will apply where there is a clear link to
Council business, for example with regard to confidentiality and use of Council
resources, even if your actions in respect of these examples are undertaking during
private business:

8 This position sits with Art. 10 of the European Convention on Human Rights which protects an
individual’s freedom of speech when done in their private capacity. This includes not only the substance
of any political comment but the form in which it is conveyed. This stance has been supported in
caselaw, notably Livingstone v Adjudication Panel for England (2006) and for example MC v Standards
Committee of London Borough of Richmond (2011).

27



12

Appendix 5

Arrangements for dealing with breaches of the Code of Conduct

Complaints in respect of this Code of Conduct are made to the Monitoring Officer.

1. Receipt and Acknowledgment of the Complaint

The Monitoring Officer will acknowledgment a Code of Conduct complaint within 5
working days. An initial response will then be sent within 10 working days after that,
either seeking further clarification, or setting out how the council will consider the
complaint. The onus is on the complainant to ensure that all relevant information is
given. The complainant will be told that full details of their complaint will be given to
the Councillor concerned (“the Subject Member”).

Anonymous complaints will not be considered unless accompanied by documentary
or photographic evidence, evidencing an exceptionally serious or significant matter.

If the Subject Member is a Parish or Town Councillor, the clerk will be informed of
the complaint on a confidential basis.

2. Response of the Subject Member

The Subject Member will be informed of the complaint within 5 working days of the
complaint being received and clarified. The Subject Member will be asked to supply
written comments within 10 working days from the complaint being received or such
longer time as determined by the Monitoring Officer. A Subject Member will be
informed that he or she is entitled under the Localism Act 2011 to seek support from
one of the Council’s Independent Persons

3. Initial Assessment of the complaint by the Monitoring Officer

Once a response has been received from the Subject Matter, or when a reasonable
time has passed and no responses has been received, the Monitoring Officer will carry
out an initial assessment of the complaint. The purpose of the initial assessment by
the Monitoring Officer is to determine whether the complaint should be accepted for
further consideration or rejected. In determining whether a complaint should proceed
the Monitoring Officer may apply the following criteria:

 Acting as a Member: Was the Subject Member acting as a Member at the
time of the allegation?9

 Seriousness of the complaint – is the complaint trivial, vexatious, malicious,
politically motivated, or ‘tit for tat’? Would the resources/cost involved in
investigating and determining the complaint be disproportionate to the
allegation if proven? Where complaints are raised by Members alleging a lack
of respect or courtesy by the Subject Member then the Monitoring Officer may
reject the complaint - see guidance on ‘high standards of conduct’ Appendix
3.

9 See guidance at Appendix 4

28



13

 Duplication – Is the complaint substantially similar to a previous allegation or
is it subject of an existing investigation? If there is a current complaint about
the same matter then a repeat allegation will be rejected unless the
complainant is directly harmed by the allegation or they can provide new
evidence.

 Length of time – Did the events or behaviour to which the complaint relates
take place more than six months prior to receipt of the complaint. Does the
time lapse mean that those involved are unlikely to remember matters clearly,
or does the lapse of time mean that there would be little benefit in taking
action

 Public Interest – In all cases, is the public interest served in referring the
complaint further. Has the Subject Member offered an apology or other
remedial action which is satisfactory to the Monitoring Officer, taking into
account the circumstances of the complaint?

The complainant and the Subject Member will normally be informed by the
Monitoring Officer of the initial assessment decision within 10 working days of it
being made. Should it be determined by the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with
an Independent Person where appropriate, that the complaint should not proceed,
then the complaint shall be dismissed. There is no right of appeal for the complainant
under these rules.

4. Decision of the Monitoring Officer
Should it be determined, having regard to the criteria referred to in section 3 above,
that the complaint be accepted for further consideration, the Monitoring Officer shall,
subject to consultation with an Independent Person, have delegated authority to
decide to take one of the following actions:

 If there is clear evidence that there has been no breach of the Code of
Conduct, the Monitoring Officer will write a No Breach Decision Notice
explaining the reason for the decision which will be given to the complainant
and the Subject Member. The Parish or Town Clerk, if appropriate, will be
informed that there is no breach.

 Where there has been a clear breach of the Code of Conduct the Monitoring
Officer will write a report with a recommendation for a decision for a breach of
the Code of Conduct, giving reasons for that recommended decision, and
then refer the matter to a Members Standards Sub-Committee for a formal
decision. The Member Standards Sub-Committee will conduct a local hearing
following the procedure in Appendix 6 of this Part, and make a decision in
accordance with paragraph 2.2.

 Where there has possibly been a breach of the Code of Conduct, the
Monitoring Officer will require a formal investigation and a written investigation
report by an Investigating Officer. An indicative timescale for the process
should be given to the complainant and the Subject Member. At least a
monthly update report will be provided to all parties in an ongoing
investigation. The investigation report shall conclude whether or not there has
been a breach of the Code of Conduct and give clear reasons for that
conclusion.

29



14

5. Finding on Investigation

5.1 No Breach of Code of Conduct

Where an investigation finds no evidence that the Subject Member has failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with an
Independent Person and the Chairman of the Employment and Member Standards
Panel, shall make a decision to take no further action. The Monitoring Officer will
write a No Breach Decision Notice explaining the reason for the decision which will
be given to the complainant and the Subject Member. The Parish or Town Clerk, if
appropriate, will be informed that there is no breach, but no further information will be
supplied.

5.2 Breach of Code of Conduct

Where there is evidence that the Subject Member has failed to comply with the Code
of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with an Independent Person and
the Chairman of the Employment and Member Standards Panel, shall make a
decision to refer the Investigating Officer’s report to a Member Standards Sub-
committee. The Member Standards Sub-Committee will conduct a local hearing
following the procedure Appendix 6 of this Part, and make a decision in accordance
with paragraph 2.2.

The Member Standards Sub Committee will usually hear a complaint within one
calendar month of the date that the Monitoring Officer has referred the matter to the
Sub Committee. The Subject Member and complainant will be informed of the
decision.

6. Appeals, Transparency and Confidentiality

6.1 Appeals

There is no right of appeal under the Code of Conduct and the decision of the
Monitoring Officer or the Member Standards Sub Committee will be final. However,
Subject Members who have been found in breach of the Code of Conduct may make
a statement about the complaint and the findings. This statement shall be published
on the Council’s website for the period stated in Transparency section below.

If the complainant is unhappy with this decision, they may write to the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman to complain if he or she believes that
proper process has not been followed The Ombudsman will not however have
authority to change the decision itself. Note that the Ombudsman will not consider a
complaint from a Councillor.

6.2 Transparency
The decision of the Monitoring Officer or Member Standards Sub Committee will be
sent to the Subject Member and the complainant. A decision that a Subject Member
is in breach of the Code of Conduct will be published on the Council’s website. The

30



15

decision will be publicised for 12 months unless the Member Standards Sub-
Committee consider an alternative time is appropriate.

Unless the Member Standards Sub-Committee determines otherwise, the decision
notice, the Group Leader/ Chairman’s statement and the Subject Member’s statement
only will be published on the website.

6.3 Confidentiality

Subject to the requirements of Data Protection legislation, unless the Monitoring
Officer or Member Standards Sub Committee decides otherwise or unless stated to
the contrary in this Part, the complaint, all communications and correspondence,
investigation reports, reports and decisions will remain confidential. Statements and
investigations will be conducted with an expectation that such information will only be
released to the parties involved under these arrangements.

The members ‘need to know’ in relation to access to information shall only extend to
the Subject Member, the complainant (where such is a member) and members of the
Member Standards Sub Committee.

Requests for information will be provided on the basis of the expectation of
confidentiality by the parties and exemptions under the various statutory schemes.
Where investigation reports have been prepared, only summary or the conclusions will
be released.

31



16

Appendix 6

1 Procedure for Member Standards Sub Committee

1.1 Appointment, Composition and Terms of Reference of the Member
Standards Sub Committee

The Monitoring Officer is required to convene a Member Standards Sub Committee
from the membership of the Employment and Member Standards Panel as necessary.
The Member Standards Sub Committee will therefore not have a fixed membership.

The Member Standards Sub Committee shall comprise of three voting members of the
Employment and Member Standards Panel If the complaint relates to a Town or
Parish Councillor then a co-opted Town or Parish Councillor may also be an additional
member of the Member Standards Sub Committee, but will not have voting rights.

An Independent Person may be asked to attend any Member Standards Sub
Committee and give advice to it in respect of the complaint as required by S28(7) of
the Localism Act 2011.

1.2 Pre Hearing Process

The date of the hearing will be arranged by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with
the members of the Member Standards Sub Committee and the Subject Member.

Once the date for the Member Standards Sub Committee has been arranged the
Subject Member will be notified and asked if they:

a) wish to attend the hearing;

b) wish to be accompanied or represented at the hearing by any other person;

c) wish to submit any written evidence or documentation to be considered by
the Sub Committee. This must be sent no later than 3 working days prior to
the hearing and will be passed to the complainant and the Investigating
Officer for any comment. Additional evidence or documentation not
submitted by this deadline may not be accepted by the Sub Committee;

d) wish to call relevant witnesses to give evidence at the hearing. The
Chairman of the Member Standards Sub Committee appointed at the
meeting will have the final decision on how many witnesses may
reasonably be needed.

The Member Standards Sub Committee and the Subject Member, and the
Independent Person will each receive a report from the Monitoring Officer which will
include a copy of the Investigating Officer’s final report, on a strictly confidential basis.

The Members Standards Sub Committee will be held in private and this will be
confirmed at the hearing. The complainant will not attend unless the Chairman of the

32



17

Member Standards Sub Committee agrees, or the Subject Member requests that they
attend for the purposes of answering questions on the evidence provided.

1.3 Procedure for the Member Standards Sub Committee

The procedure for the Member Standards Sub Committee will be as follows:

a) The Chairman will confirm the names and status of those attending. If the
Subject Member is not present at the start of the hearing, and they had
indicated their intention to attend, the Chairman shall ask the Monitoring
Officer whether the Subject Member has provided any reasons why he or
she would not be present. From the response the Member Standard Sub
Committee will decide whether to make a determination in the absence of
the Subject Member or adjourn the hearing to another date.

b) If an Investigating Officer was used then the Investigating Officer, or in
his/her absence the Monitoring Officer, shall present the Investigating
Officer’s report having particular regard to any points of difference identified
by the Subject Member and why the Investigating Officer had concluded,
on the basis of their findings of fact, that the Subject Member had failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct. The Investigating Officer or Monitoring
Officer may call witnesses as necessary in order to substantiate his/her
findings.

c) The Subject Member will then be given the opportunity to ask the
Investigating Officer, or any of the witnesses, questions relating to the
report or matters that have arisen during the witness statements.

d) Members of the Member Standards Sub Committee, the Independent
Person and the Monitoring Officer will then have the opportunity of asking
the Investigating Officer, or any of the witnesses, questions relating to the
report or matters that have arisen in the witness statements.

e) The Subject Member will then be invited to respond to the Investigating
Officer’s report and provide evidence, either by calling witnesses or by
making representations to the Member Standards Sub Committee as to
why they consider that they did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct.

f) The Investigating Officer will then be given the opportunity to ask the
Subject Member and any witnesses, questions relating to the
representations made to the Member Standards Sub Committee.

g) Members of the Member Standards Sub Committee, the Independent
Person and the Monitoring Officer will then have the opportunity to ask the
Subject Member, and any witnesses, questions relating to the
representations made to the Member Standards Sub Committee.

h) The Investigating Officer will then be given the opportunity to sum up.

i) The Subject Member will then be given the opportunity to sum up

33



18

j) The Independent Person will then be invited to comment and outline their
view in respect of the complaint.

k) The Chairman will check with the other members of the Member Standards
Sub Committee whether they are satisfied that they have sufficient
evidence to come to a considered conclusion on the matter. If it is decided
that additional evidence is required before a determination can be made
then the hearing will be adjourned and the Investigating Officer or
Monitoring Officer will be asked either to seek and provide such additional
evidence and/or undertake further investigation on any point specified by
the Member Standards Sub Committee.

l) If the Member Standards Sub Committee is satisfied that that they do have
sufficient evidence to make a decision this will conclude the evidence
gathering part of the hearing. The Investigating Officer, the Subject
Member, the Independent Person and any witnesses that might be present
will be asked to leave at this point, but the clerk and Monitoring Officer to
the Sub Committee will remain.

m) The Member Standards Sub Committee will then determine the complaint
on the balance of probabilities. If the Member Standards Sub Committee
determine that there has been a failure to follow the Code they shall seek
advice from the Monitoring Officer as to what action they believe should be
taken against the Subject Member.

2 Findings of the Member Standards Sub Committee

2.1 No Finding of a Failure to follow the Code of Conduct

If the Member Standards Sub Committee determine that the Subject Member has not
failed to follow the Code of Conduct then the complaint will be dismissed.

The Monitoring Officer shall prepare a decision notice in consultation with the
Chairman of the Member Standards Sub Committee stating the Member Standards
Sub Committee’s findings in relation to a non-failure to follow the Code of Conduct .
The decision notice will be provided to the Subject Member, the Investigating Officer
if relevant, the complainant and the Independent Person for their information.

2.2 Finding of Failure to follow the Code of Conduct

If the Member Standards Sub Committee determines that the Subject Member has
failed to follow the Code of Conduct then it can decide to take any or more of the
following actions:

a) Formally censure the Subject Member in writing for their failure to follow the
Code of Conduct;

34



19

b) Recommend to the Subject Member’s Group Leader (or in the case of un-
grouped Members, recommend to Council or any subcommittee(s) of
Council that the Subject Member be removed from any or all
subcommittee(s) of the Council;

c) Recommend to the Leader of Council that the Subject Member be removed
from the Cabinet, or removed from particular portfolio responsibilities;

d) Instruct the Monitoring Officer (or recommend that the relevant Town/Parish
Council, as appropriate) to arrange training for the Subject Member;

e) Remove (or recommend to the relevant Town/Parish Council that the
Subject Member be removed) from all outside appointments to which
he/she has been appointed or nominated by the authority (or by the
Town/Parish Council);

f) Withdraw (or recommend to the relevant Town/Parish Council that it
withdraws) facilities provided to the Subject Member by the Council, such
as a computer, website and/or e-mail and internet access;

g) Exclude (or recommend that the relevant Town/Parish Council exclude) the
Subject Member from the Council’s offices or other premises, with the
exception of meeting rooms as necessary for attending Council or Panel
meetings; or

h) Report its findings to the Crown Prosecution Service in respect of a Subject
Member that has been found to have committed an offence under s30
and/or s31 Localism Act 2011.

2.3 Publication of the Decision on Finding a Breach of the Code of Conduct

Within 5 working days of the decision, the Monitoring Officer shall prepare a formal
decision notice in consultation with the Chairman of the Member Standards Sub
Committee. A copy of the decision notice will be sent to the complainant, the Subject
Member (and, if applicable, the relevant Town/Parish Council) and the Independent
Person for their information.

A decision that a Subject Member is in breach of the Code of Conduct will be published
on the Council’s website for 12 months unless the Member Standards Sub-Committee
consider an alternative time is appropriate.

The Subject Member has no right of appeal to the Council against a decision of the
Monitoring Officer or the Member Standards Sub Committee.

35



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 1

Appendix B: Current Code of Conduct and complaints process

PART 7 – THE CODES, PROTOCOLS
AND ADVICE

A – MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

36



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 2

Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead Members’ Code of Conduct

Conduct expected of Members and co-opted Members of the authority when acting
in that capacity

You, as a Member of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead shall have regard to
the following principles: selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness,
honesty and leadership.

When acting in your capacity as a Member or co-opted Member:

i) You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly confer an
advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other material
benefits for yourself, your family, a friend or close associate.

ii) You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to outside
individuals or organisations that might seek to influence you in the performance of
your official duties.

iii) When carrying out your public duties you must make all choices, such as making
public appointments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals for rewards or
benefits, on merit.

iv) You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must co-operate fully
with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office.

v) You must be as open as possible about your decisions and actions and the decisions
and actions of your authority and should be prepared to give reasons for those
decisions and actions.

vi) You must declare any private interests, both pecuniary and non-pecuniary, that
relate to your public duties and must take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a
way that protects the public interest, including registering and declaring interests in a
manner conforming with the procedures set out in the Appendices below.

vii) You must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of your
authority, ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes
(including party political purposes) and you must have regard to any applicable Local
Authority Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986.

viii) You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in your
public post, in particular as characterised by the above requirements, by leadership
and example.

ix) You must not act in a way which a reasonable person would regard as bullying, or
in any way which is intimidating to others.

x) Councillors must not behave in such a way that a reasonable person would regard
as disrespectful to others. You should encourage and foster respect in others.

37



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 3

xi) Councillors must not knowingly disclose information which they believe, or ought
reasonably be aware, is confidential or where disclosure is prohibited by law, unless
they have the consent of the person authorised to give it, or they are required by law
to do so.

This Code of Conduct is supplemented by the provisions of Appendix 1 to 7

38



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 4

Appendix 1

Registering and Declaring pecuniary and personal interests
(s.30 Localism Act 2011)

You must, within 28 days of taking office as a Member or co-opted Member, notify your
authority’s Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest (‘DPIs’) as defined by
regulations made by the Secretary of State, where the pecuniary interest is yours, your
spouse’s or civil partner’s, or is the pecuniary interest of somebody with whom you are
living with as a husband or wife, or as if you were civil partners. The definition of DPIs is in
Appendix 6.

In addition, you must, within 28 days of taking office as a Member or co-opted Member,
notify your authority’s Monitoring Officer of any Personal Interest as defined in Appendix 6.

If any DPI or Personal Interest has not been entered onto the authority’s Register of
Interests, then the Member must disclose the interest to any meeting of the authority at
which they are present, where they have an interest in any matter being considered and
where the matter is not a Sensitive Interest as defined in Appendix 6.

Following disclosure of any interest not on the authority’s Register of Interest or the subject
of a pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28
days beginning with the date of disclosure in order that it may be placed on the Register of
Interests.

You must, within 28 days of receipt, notify the Monitoring Officer, in writing, of any gift,
benefit or hospitality, with a value in excess of £25, which will then be entered on the
public register of gifts and hospitality.

A copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will be published on the
authority’s website.

39



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 5

Appendix 2

Disclosure of interests and participation in meetings.
(s.31 Localism Act 2011)

Disclosure at Meetings

You are required to disclose interests at meetings when you are aware that you have
either:

(a) A DPI or a Personal Interest which is relevant to the matter being considered; or
(b) A Personal Interest or a DPI which is not on your Register of Interests;

You are not required to (but can do so if you wish) disclose any other type of interest that
you may have. If in doubt, it is always better to disclose an interest than not do so as the
Council places a high value upon its public reputation for integrity.

Participation for Decision Makers at Meetings

If you attend a meeting as a decision maker and have:

(a) DPI which is relevant to the matter under discussion; or
(b) a Prejudicial Interest;

then you must not participate in any debate of the matter and/or participate in any vote at
the meeting, unless you have obtained a Dispensation.

Please see Appendix 6 for guidance on these terms. Appendix 3 states how you can
obtain a Dispensation.

If you have a DPI or Prejudicial Interest (and do not have a Dispensation) as described
then you must:

(a) Declare the interest at the start of the meeting when the Chairman asks if there are
any interests to declare; and

(b) Before the item is to be discussed, you may make representations before there is
debate on the matter but, when finished, you must move to the pubic area or leave
the room and take no further part in the discussion or vote.

You cannot avoid disclosure of a DPI or Prejudicial Interest merely by withdrawing during
that part of the meeting when the matter you have a DPI or Prejudicial Interest, is to be
discussed. In respect to a DPI, failure to comply is a Criminal Offence.

If you remain in the room, you must not sit with the other members of the meeting and
must move to the public area. You must not speak after making your representations. It is
also important that you do not express your views in a non-verbal way, for example by
using body language or expressing emotion.

40



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 6

Appendix 3
How to obtain a Dispensation

If you seek a Dispensation, you must make a written request to the Relevant Officer of the
Council.

The Council may grant a dispensation under this section only if, after having had regard to
all relevant circumstances, the authority—

(a) considers that without the dispensation the number of persons from participating in
any particular business would be so great a proportion of the body transacting the
business as to impede the transaction of the business,

(b) considers that without the dispensation the representation of different political groups
on the body transacting any particular business would be so upset as to alter the
likely outcome of any vote relating to the business,

(c) considers that granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead.

(d) if it is an authority to which Part 1A of the Local Government Act 2000 applies and is
operating executive arrangements, considers that without the dispensation each
Member of the authority’s executive would be prohibited from participating in any
particular business to be transacted by the authority’s executive, or

(e) considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation.

A dispensation under this section must specify the period for which it has effect, and the
period specified may not exceed four years.

The Relevant Officer is the Managing Director or in substitute the officer clerking the
meeting.

41



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 7

Appendix 4
Arrangements for dealing with breaches of the Code of Conduct

Complaints in respect of this Code are made to the Monitoring Officer.

1. Receipt and Acknowledgment of the Complaint
When a complainant makes a complaint they will receive:

 An acknowledgment within 3 working days.
 An initial response within 10 working days setting out how the Council will consider

the complaint and the likely timescale for resolution.
 The complainant will be told that full details of their complaint will be given to the

Councillor concerned (‘the Subject Member’).

 Anonymous complaints will not be considered unless accompanied by documentary

or photographic evidence, evidencing an exceptionally serious or significant matter.

If the Subject Member is a Parish or Town Councillor, the clerk will be informed of
the complaint on a confidential basis, where it is a Parish or Town Council matter.

2. Response of the Subject Member
The Subject Member will be informed of the complaint within 3 working days of the
complaint being received. The Subject Member will be asked to supply written comments
within 15 working days from the complaint being received.

3. Initial Assessment of the complaint by the Monitoring Officer
The purpose of the initial assessment by the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with an
Independent Person where appropriate, is to determine whether the complaint should be
accepted for further consideration or rejected. In determining whether a complaint should
proceed the Monitoring Officer may apply the following criteria:

 Sufficiency of information – Is there sufficient information or evidence provided with
the allegation? If it appears that substantiating evidence may be available, but has
not been provided, the Monitoring Officer may ask for additional evidence, but the
onus is on the complainant to ensure that all relevant information is provided.

 Seriousness of the complaint – is the complaint trivial, vexatious, malicious,
politically motivated, or ‘tit for tat’? Would the resources/cost involved in
investigating and determining the complaint be disproportionate to the allegation if
proven?

 Duplication – Is the complaint substantially similar to a previous allegation or
subject of an investigation by another relevant authority?

 Length of time – Did the events or behaviour to which the complaint relates take
place more than six months prior to receipt of the complaint. Does the time lapse
mean that those involved are unlikely to remember matters clearly, or does the
lapse of time mean that there would be little benefit in taking action

 Public Interest – Is the public interest served in referring the complaint further. Has
the Subject Member offered an apology or other remedial action?

The Complainant and the Subject Member will normally be informed by the Monitoring
Officer of the initial assessment decision within 20 working days of it being made. Should it

42



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 8

be determined by the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with an Independent Person
where appropriate, that the complaint should not proceed, then the complaint shall be
dismissed. There is no right of appeal for the Complainant to the Council.

4. Initial Decision of the Monitoring Officer
Should it be determined, having regard to the criteria referred to in section 3 above, that
the complaint be accepted for further consideration, the Monitoring Officer shall, subject to
consultation with an Independent Person, have delegated authority to decide to take one
of the following actions:

 Take no action if there is clear evidence that there has been no breach of the Code
of Conduct. Nothing further will be required from the Subject Member and the
matter will be closed.

 Where there has been a clear breach of the Code of Conduct, move to section 5.2
below.

 Where there has possibly been a breach of the Code of Conduct, to require a
formal investigation and a written investigation report by an Investigating Officer. An
indicative timescale for the process should be given to the Complainant and the
Subject Member. At least a monthly update report will be provided to all parties in
an ongoing investigation. The investigation report shall conclude whether there has
been a breach of the Code of Conduct and give clear reasons for that conclusion.
Copies of the investigation report will be provided in confidence to the Independent
Person, and the Subject Member.

5. Finding on Investigation
5.1 No Breach of Code of Conduct
Where an investigation finds no evidence that the Subject Member has failed to comply
with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with an Independent
Person and the Chairman of the Employment and Member Standards Panel, shall make a
decision to take no further action. The Subject Member and the complainant will both be
informed. The Parish or Town Clerk, if appropriate, will be informed that there is no
breach, but no further information will be supplied. There will be no appeal.

5.2 Breach of Code of Conduct
Where there is evidence that the Subject Member has failed to comply with the Code of
Conduct, the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with an Independent Person and the
Chairman of the Employment and Member Standards Panel, shall make a decision to:

a) resolve the matter informally by asking the Subject Member to (i) take part in
mediation with the complainant in order to settle the complaint, provided both the
Subject Member and the Complainant are willing to do so, and/or (ii) make a
written apology to the Complainant which is acceptable to the Monitoring Officer
and Chairman of the Employment and Member Standards Panel, and/or (iii)
attend training and/or (iv) correct an entry in a register or correct a declaration
made;

OR
b) refer the Investigating Officer’s report to a Member Standards Subcommittee.

The Member Standards Sub Committee will conduct a local hearing following the
procedure Appendix 5 of this Part, and make a decision in accordance with
paragraph 2.2 of Appendix

43



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 9

The Member Standards Sub Committee will usually hear a complaint within two calendar
months of the date that the Monitoring Officer has referred the matter to the
Subcommittee.
The Subject Member and Complainant will be informed of the decision.

6. Sanction
If the Monitoring Officer or the Member Standards Sub Committee has decided that there
has been a breach of the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer shall within 15 working
days from the date of decision refer the matter to the Subject Member’s Group Leader or
his or her deputy, or Chairman or his or her Deputy if a parish or Town Councillor, with a
recommendation for sanction e.g. removal from a panel or submitting a formal apology.

The Subject Member’s Group Leader, or Chairman if a parish or Town Councillor, will have
a further 15 working days to respond to the recommendation, and to prepare a statement
to be placed on the council website.

If the allegation appears to involve criminal activity, the Monitoring Officer will refer the
matter to the police at any stage in this process they believe appropriate.

7. Support, Appeals and Transparency
7.1 Support to Subject Members during an Investigation
The Council will support Subject Members during the complaint investigation process as
follows:

a. Independent Person: Subject Members can seek support from one of the Independent
Persons (not the Independent person who is consulted by the Monitoring Officer) with
regard the complaint.

b. Legal Support: The Council will provide reasonable financial support to allow Subject
Members to seek any reasonable legal advice to defend (i) proceedings for criminal acts
alleged as part of your role as Councillor, or (ii) any allegation of a breach of the Code of
Conduct. Subject Members will be required to sign an agreement with regard to legal
support before engaging any legal support.

Any criminal acts must occur in the course of the Subject Member’s duties as a Councillor.
They must notify the Council’s insurance manager before seeking legal advice. The advice
and legal costs must be appropriate to the complaint. Subject Members will be required to
immediately repay back all monies to the Council if they are convicted of a criminal offence
or have failed to comply with the Code of Conduct.

7.2 Appeals
There is no right to appeal under the Code of Conduct and the decision of the Monitoring
Officer or the Member Standards Sub Committee will be final. However, Subject Members
may make a statement about the complaint and the findings. This statement shall be
published on the Council’s website for the period stated in Transparency section below.

If the Complainant or the Subject Member is unhappy with this decision, they may write to
the Local Government Ombudsman to complain. The Local Government Ombudsman
acts as an independent 'referee' in disputes between individuals and their local councils.

44



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 10

The Ombudsman is appointed by Government to investigate complaints against local
authorities.

7.3 Transparency
The decision of the Monitoring Officer or Member Standards Sub Committee will be sent to
the Subject Member and the Complainant. The decision will be published on the Council’s
website once the period (of up to 30 days) in section 6 of this Appendix has expired. The
decision will be publicised for the following period:

(a) No Breach of Code – 3 months
(b) Breach of Code – 24 months (or such shorter period if the Subject Member is no
longer a Member of the Council).

Unless the Monitoring Officer determines otherwise, the decision notice, the Group
Leader/ Chairman’s statement and the Subject Member’s statement only will be published
on the website.

45



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 11

Appendix 5

1 Procedure for Member Standards Sub Committee

1.1 Appointment, Composition and Terms of Reference of the Member Standards
Sub Committee

The Monitoring Officer is required to convene a Member Standards Sub Committee from
the membership of the Employment and Member Standards Panel as necessary. The
Member Standards Sub Committee will therefore not have a fixed membership.

The Member Standards Sub Committee shall comprise of three voting members of the
Employment and Member Standards Panel If the complaint relates to a Town or Parish
Councillor then a co-opted Town or Parish Councillor may also be an additional member of
the Member Standards Sub Committee, but will not have voting rights.

An Independent Person may be asked to attend any Member Standards Sub Committee
and give advice to it in respect of the complaint as required by S28(7) of the Localism Act
2011.

1.2 Pre Hearing Process
The date of the hearing will be arranged by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the
members of the Member Standards Sub Committee and the Subject Member.

Once the date for the Member Standards Sub Committee has been arranged the Subject
Member will be notified and asked if they:

a) wish to attend the hearing;

b) wish to be accompanied or represented at the hearing by any other person;

c) wish to submit any written evidence or documentation to be considered by the
Sub Committee. This must be sent no later than 3 working days prior to the
hearing and will be passed to the complainant and the Investigating Officer for
any comment. Additional evidence or documentation not submitted by this
deadline may not be accepted by the Sub Committee;

d) wish to call relevant witnesses to give evidence at the hearing. The Chairman of
the Member Standards Sub Committee appointed at the meeting will have the
final decision on how many witnesses may reasonably be needed.

The Member Standards Sub Committee and the Subject Member, and the Independent
Person will each receive a report from the Monitoring Officer which will include a copy of
the Investigating Officer’s final report, on a strictly confidential basis.

The Members Standards Subcommittee will be held in private and this will be confirmed at
the hearing. The Complainant will not attend unless the Chairman of the Members
Standards Subcommittee agrees, or the Subject Member requests that they attend for the
purposes of answering questions on the evidence provided.

46



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 12

1.3 Procedure for the Member Standards Sub Committee

The procedure for the Member Standards Sub Committee will be as follows:

a) The Chairman will confirm the names and status of those attending. If the
Subject Member is not present at the start of the hearing, and they had indicated
their intention to attend, the Chairman shall ask the Monitoring Officer whether
the Subject Member has provided any reasons why he or she would not be
present. From the response the Members Standard Sub Committee will decide
whether to make a determination in the absence of the Subject Member or
adjourn the hearing to another date.

b) If an Investigating Officer was used then the Investigating Officer, or in his/her
absence the Monitoring Officer, shall present the Investigating Officer’s report
having particular regard to any points of difference identified by the Subject
Member and why the Investigating Officer had concluded, on the basis of their
findings of fact, that the Subject Member had failed to comply with the Code of
Conduct. The Investigating Officer or Monitoring Officer may call witnesses as
necessary in order to substantiate his/her findings.

c) The Subject Member will then be given the opportunity to ask the Investigating
Officer, or any of the witnesses, questions relating to the report or matters that
have arisen during the witness statements.

d) Members of the Member Standards Sub Committee, the Independent Person
and the Monitoring Officer will then have the opportunity of asking the
Investigating Officer, or any of the witnesses, questions relating to the report or
matters that have arisen in the witness statements.

e) The Subject Member will then be invited to respond to the Investigating Officer’s
report and provide evidence, either by calling witnesses or by making
representations to the Member Standards Sub Committee as to why they
consider that they did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct.

f) The Investigating Officer will then be given the opportunity to ask the Subject
Member and any witnesses, questions relating to the representations made to
the Member Standards Sub Committee.

g) Members of the Member Standards Sub Committee, the Independent Person
and the Monitoring Officer will then have the opportunity to ask the Subject
Member, and any witnesses, questions relating to the representations made to
the Member Standards Sub Committee.

h) The Investigating Officer will then be given the opportunity to sum up.

i) The Subject Member will then be given the opportunity to sum up

j) The Independent Person will then be invited to comment and outline their view in
respect of the complaint.

47



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 13

k) The Chairman will check with the other members of the Member Standards Sub
Committee whether they are satisfied that they have sufficient evidence to come
to a considered conclusion on the matter. If it is decided that additional evidence
is required before a determination can be made then the hearing will be
adjourned and the Investigating Officer or Monitoring Officer will be asked either
to seek and provide such additional evidence and/or undertake further
investigation on any point specified by the Member Standards Sub Committee.

l) If the Member Standards Sub Committee is satisfied that that they do have
sufficient evidence to make a decision this will conclude the evidence gathering
part of the hearing. The Investigating Officer, the Subject Member, the
Independent Person and any witnesses that might be present will be asked to
leave at this point, but the clerk and Monitoring Officer to the Sub Committee will
remain.

m) The Member Standards Sub Committee will then determine the complaint on the
balance of probabilities. If the Member Standards Sub Committee determine that
there has been a failure to follow the Code they shall seek advice from the
Monitoring Officer as to what action they believe should be taken against the
Subject Member.

2 Findings of the Member Standards Sub Committee

2.1 No Finding of a Failure to follow the Code of Conduct

If the Member Standards Sub Committee determine that the Subject Member has not
failed to follow the Code of Conduct then the complaint will be dismissed.

The decision notice stating the Member Standards Panel’s findings, in relation to a non-
failure to follow the Code of Conduct, will be provided to the Subject Member, the
Investigating Officer, the Monitoring Officer, the Complainant and the Independent Person.

2.2 Finding of Failure to follow the Code of Conduct
If the Member Standards Sub Committee determines that the Subject Member has failed
to follow the Code of Conduct then it can decide to take any or more of the following
actions:

a) Formally censure the Subject Member in writing for their failure to follow the
Code of Conduct;

b) Recommend to the Subject Member’s Group Leader (or in the case of un-
grouped Members, recommend to Council or any subcommittee(s) of Council
that the Subject Member be removed from any or all subcommittee(s) of the
Council;

c) Recommend to the Leader of Council that the Subject Member be removed from
the Cabinet, or removed from particular portfolio responsibilities;

48



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 14

d) Instruct the Monitoring Officer (or recommend that the relevant Town/Parish
Council, as appropriate) to arrange training for the Subject Member;

e) Remove (or recommend to the relevant Town/Parish Council that the Subject
Member be removed) from all outside appointments to which he/she has been
appointed or nominated by the authority (or by the Town/Parish Council);

f) Withdraw (or recommend to the relevant Town/Parish Council that it withdraws)
facilities provided to the Subject Member by the Council, such as a computer,
website and/or e-mail and internet access;

g) Exclude (or recommend that the relevant Town/Parish Council exclude) the
Subject Member from the Council’s offices or other premises, with the exception
of meeting rooms as necessary for attending Council or Panel meetings; or

h) Report its findings to the Crown Prosecution Service in respect of a Subject
Member that has been found to have committed an offence under s30 and/or s31
Localism Act 2011.

2.3 Publication of the Decision on Finding a Breach of the Code of Conduct

Within 3 working days, the Monitoring Officer shall prepare a formal decision notice in
consultation with the Chairman of the Member Standards Sub Committee. A copy of the
decision notice will be sent to the Complainant, the Subject Member (and, if applicable, the
relevant Town/Parish Council) and the Independent Person for their information.

The Subject Member has no right of appeal to the Council against a decision of the
Monitoring Officer or the Member Standards Sub Committee.

49



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 15

Appendix 6

Definitions used in the Code of Conduct

Criminal Offence
(s.34 Localism Act 2011)

It is a criminal offence if you fail, without reasonable excuse, to comply with the
requirements under s30 or s31 Localism Act 2011 to register or declare DPIs , or take part
in council business at meetings or when acting alone.

If you breach the above, the Magistrates Court may, upon conviction, impose a fine of up
to level 5 (currently £5,000.00), and an order disqualifying the person from being a
Member of a relevant authority for up to five years.

The Council would consider that taking legal advice from the Monitoring Officer or their
nominee (even if such advice was not upheld) would amount to ‘reasonable excuse’ for the
purposes of s34(1) of the Act.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPIs)

Interests defined by regulations made under s30(3) of the Localism Act 2011 and
described in the table below.

(‘M’ means you and ‘relevant person’ means you and your partner). “Partner” means a
spouse or civil partner of M, or a person with whom M is living as husband and wife or a
person with whom M is living as if they were civil partners

Subject Prescribed description
Employment, office,
trade, profession or
vacation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation
carried on for profit or gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit
(other than from the relevant authority) made or provided
within the relevant period in respect of any expenses
incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or
towards the election expenses of M.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts

Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or
a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest)
and the relevant authority—
a) under which goods or services are to be provided or

works are to be executed; and
b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land
Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the
relevant authority.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in

50



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 16

the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge)—
a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a

beneficial interest.

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
a) that body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of business

or land in the area of the relevant authority; and
b) either—

i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds
£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or

ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one
class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one
class in which the relevant person has a beneficial
interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that class.

These descriptions on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests above are subject to the following
definitions;

The Act means the Localism Act 2011

Body in which the
relevant person has
a beneficial interest

means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a
body corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or
in the securities of which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest;

Director
includes a member of the committee of management of an
industrial and provident society;

Land

excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over
land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant
person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or
to receive income;

M means a member of a relevant authority;
Member includes a co-opted member;
Relevant authority means the authority of which M is a member;

Relevant period
means the period of 12 months ending with the day on
which M gives a notification for the purposes of section
30(1) or section 31(7), as the case may be, of the Act;

Relevant person
means M or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b)
of the Act;

Securities

means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock,
bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the
meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
and other securities of any description, other than money
deposited with a building society.

51



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 17

Independent Person

The Independent Person is the person engaged by the Council who:

 must be consulted by the Managing Director before making a decision on an
allegation that the Managing Director has decided should be formally investigated.

 may be consulted by the Managing Director in respect of a complaint at any other
stage.

 may provide views to a Member or co-opted Member if that Member’s behaviour is
the subject of an allegation.

 may assist in granting dispensations to Members and co-opted Members from
requirements relating to interests set out in the Code of Conduct.

 will exercise all of the above functions in respect of Parish Councils and members
of those Parish Councils within the Council.

Personal Interests

A Personal Interest is:

i) Any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to
which you are elected appointed or nominated by the Council;

ii) Any body

 exercising functions of a public nature; or
 in receipt of any grant from the Council; or
 directed to charitable purposes; or
 one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy

(including any political party or trade union),

of which the you are a member or have a close association or of which you are in a
position of general control, influence or management.

iii) Membership of any private club, society or association operating within the Borough
Council’s area, where you hold a position of general control or management

iv) Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably
think may influence you when you make a decision on Council matters and acting
as a Councillor. e.g. the decision relates to a close family member or friend and
could have a substantial benefit to them.

You are not required to record any Personal Interest in point (iv) above on your
Register of Interests (but may do so if you wish).

Predetermination

Predetermination means that you have a closed mind and do not make a decision
impartially and solely on the basis of the relevant facts. You have not predetermined a
matter just because you have expressed a particular opinion previously or hold a view
prior to any meeting. It is proper for Councillors to play an active part in local discussions

52



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 18

and the expression of a view on a particular matter or campaigning on a particular platform
should not prevent you from participating in council business relating to such an issue. If
you have an open mind, are willing to listen and are open to consider all the facts and
arguments presented to you before making your decision, then you will not have
predetermined a matter.

Predetermination should not be confused with Predisposition (see below)

Predisposition

Any decision maker may have an initial view or opinion on a matter arising from personal
experiences and preference. Simply holding an initial view or tendency in favour of a
particular cause or matter does not preclude you from decision making. This is natural
bearing in mind that Councillors are often elected based upon their stated views and
opinions. Having a strong view on a matter will amount to only legitimate predisposition.

Prejudicial Interest

This is Personal Interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the
public would reasonably believe is so significant that it influences your judgement of the
public interest. That is, your decision is influenced by your Personal Interest such that you
are not able to impartially consider only relevant issues (you are biased). This would
include where you have Predetermined a matter.

You must ask yourself whether a member of the public – if he or she knew all the relevant
facts – would think that your Personal Interest was so significant that it would be likely to
prejudice your judgement. In other words, the interest must be perceived as likely to harm
or impair your ability to judge the public interest.

The mere existence of local knowledge, or connections within the local community, will not
normally be sufficient to meet the test. There must be some factor that might positively
harm your ability to judge the public interest objectively. The nature of the matter is also
important, including whether a large number of people are equally affected by it or whether
you or a smaller group are particularly affected.

Sensitive Interest

A Sensitive Interest occurs where you and the Monitoring Officer consider that disclosure
of the details of a DPI or a Personal Interest could lead to you, or a person connected with
you, being subject to violence or intimidation. If the interest is entered on the register,
copies of the register that are made available for inspection and any published version of
the register will exclude details of the interest, but may state that you have a DPI or a
Personal Interest and that the details are withheld under Section 32(2).

53



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 19

Appendix 7 – guidance on behaviours

What is ‘bullying’ and ‘intimidation’?

Bullying has been described by ACAS as ‘offensive, intimidating, malicious, or insulting
behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power through means that undermine, humiliate,
denigrate or injure the recipient’. A victim’s obvious vulnerability will be taken into account
when assessing whether bullying has occurred.

Bullying conduct can involve behaving in an abusive or threatening way, or making
allegations about people in public, in the company of their colleagues, through the press or
in blogs. It may happen once or be part of a pattern of behaviour, although minor isolated
incidents are unlikely to be considered bullying. It is also unlikely that a Member will be
found guilty of bullying when both parties have contributed to a breakdown in relations.

Bullying should be contrasted with the legitimate challenges which a Member can make in
challenging policy or scrutinising performance. Contributing to debates in Council
meetings about policy and asking officers to explain the rationale for their professional
opinions are to be encouraged. All Members should feel free to challenge fellow
councillors and professional officers as to why their views are held. However, Members
need to be careful about criticism which becomes offensive in nature which will cross the
line of what a reasonable person would find acceptable.

Criticism of officers

The Council is under a legal obligation to ensure that officers work in a safe environment
and the same rules about their interaction with the public apply equally to their work with
Members. Anyone should feel free to express disagreement with officers, so long as it is
done in an appropriate way. Officers should make decisions which are unbiased, and
attempts to coerce them or persuade them to act in a particular way to a point where to do
so would prejudice their professional integrity would not be acceptable.

This guidance is based on Standards for England Guidance, now archived after it was

abolished by the Localism Act 2011, as well as guidance issued by ACAS

Confidential Information

The Code of Conduct says: Councillors must not knowingly disclose information which
they believe, or ought reasonably be aware, is confidential or where disclosure is
prohibited by law, or they have the consent of the person authorised to give it, or they are
required by law to do so.

The following is based on Standards for England Guidance, now archived after it was
abolished by the Localism Act 2011. This guidance was key in dealing with complaints
about councillor’s behaviour by Standards for England from 2007 to 2012. We believe
therefore that it is reasonable to use the same guidance when assessing similar
complaints against Members under the current Code of Conduct.

54



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 20

It is important to remember that such behaviour will only be caught by the Code of
Conduct if a Member is acting or holding out as acting as a Member of the Council, and
not in his or her private capacity.

At the outset, it should be made clear that Councillors must not cause the Council to
breach Data Protection legislation by releasing any personal information which is held by
the Council, but comes to the knowledge of the Councillor. Such disclosure could cause
the Council to be subject to severe fines.

What is ‘confidential information’?

Information is a broad term. It includes facts, advice and opinions. It also covers written
materials, including CDs, DVDs and other all electronic media.

Information is confidential:

 if it is about something serious and not trivial
 if the nature of the information is sensitive or personal, for example it is a business

secret
 if it is information that you would expect people would want to be private
 if it was divulged in a way which implied it should be kept confidential
 if disclosing the information would be detrimental to the person who wishes to keep

it confidential
 if it is a Council related document which states that it is confidential
 if it was information which a Councillor has been told is confidential

When can confidential information be disclosed?

You are able to disclose confidential information when:

 the person authorised to give it has given you the consent to disclose it
 you are required by law to do so
 the disclosure is made to a third party in order to obtain professional advice.
 If you are concerned that information should be disclosed in the public interest, you

must first raise your concerns through the appropriate channels set out in the
Council’s Whistleblowing policy, or raise the matter with the Monitoring Officer.

Respect - what a reasonable person would regard as disrespectful to others.

Everyone in normal life is very aware of what ‘respect’ looks like; however, in a culture of
positive argument in politics and legal matters, the lines can get blurred between
interacting with others to make a point, and yet remaining respectful of other’s views.
Ideas and policies may be robustly criticised, but individuals should not be subject to
unreasonable or excessive personal attack. This particularly applies to dealing with the
public and officers. Chairmen of meetings are expected to apply the rules of debate and
procedure rules or standing orders to prevent abusive or disorderly conduct.

In politics, rival groupings are common, either in formal political parties or more informal
alliances. It is expected that each will campaign for their ideas, and they may also seek to
discredit the policies and actions of their opponents. Criticism of ideas and opinion is part

55



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 7A

Part 7A - 21

of democratic debate, and does not in itself amount to bullying or failing to treat someone
with respect. In an arena of political discussion, such as in Council meetings, a finding of
a breach for disrespect would be exceptional.

This rule does not apply to what could be reasonably referred to as minor incidents, such
as putting the phone down on someone, or failing to reply to correspondence.

56



Document is Restricted

57

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

59

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Changes to Code of Conduct and Complaints process
	6 Minutes
	7 Response to UNISON and GMB pay claim for 2020/21

